

SENATE BILL NO. 524—COMMITTEE ON FINANCE

JUNE 5, 2005

Referred to Committee on Finance

SUMMARY—Authorizes and provides funding for certain projects of capital improvement. (BDR S-1486)

FISCAL NOTE: Effect on Local Government: No.

Effect on the State: Contains Appropriation included in Executive Budget.

~

EXPLANATION – Matter in *bolded italics* is new; matter between brackets ~~omitted material~~ is material to be omitted.

AN ACT relating to projects of capital improvement; authorizing certain expenditures by the State Public Works Board; levying a property tax to support the consolidated bond interest and redemption fund; making appropriations; requiring the repayment for certain projects by certain state agencies; and providing other matters properly relating thereto.

THE PEOPLE OF THE STATE OF NEVADA, REPRESENTED IN SENATE AND ASSEMBLY, DO ENACT AS FOLLOWS:

- 1 **Section 1.** 1. There is hereby appropriated from the State
2 General Fund to the State Public Works Board the sum of
3 \$28,154,528 to support the Board in carrying out the program of
4 capital improvements summarized in subsection 3.
5 2. There is hereby appropriated from the State General Fund to
6 the State Public Works Board the sum of \$53,623,972 to support the
7 Board in carrying out the program of capital improvements
8 summarized in subsection 4.
9 3. The amount appropriated pursuant to subsection 1 is
10 allocated to projects numbered and described in the executive
11 budget for the 2005-2007 biennium or otherwise described as
12 follows:



	Description	Project No.	Amount
1			
2			
3	(a) Capital Improvements for the		
4	Department of Corrections:		
5	Phase IV housing units at HDSP.....	05-C20b	\$650,000
6	Installation of generator number 4		
7	at HDSP	05-M06	\$532,738
8	Install backflow preventors at		
9	NNCC and NSP	05-M13	\$188,047
10	Expand sewage leachfield at		
11	SSCC.....	05-M14	\$598,929
12	Sewage treatment upgrades at		
13	ESP.....	05-M15	\$3,332,880
14	Sewage disposal upgrades at PCC	05-M16	\$234,467
15	Indian Springs sewage disposal		
16	upgrades	05-M17	\$2,658,136
17	Phone cable replacement at		
18	NNCC	05-M19	\$175,839
19	Central boiler plant renovation at		
20	LCC.....	05-M22	\$367,999
21	Locks, doors, control panel and		
22	intercom systems at WSCC	05-M24	\$548,173
23	Doors, locks and control panels at		
24	SDCC	05-M25	\$436,599
25	Groundwater protection at CCC.....	05-M29	\$639,874
26	Building structural remediation at		
27	LCC.....	05-M30	\$452,832
28	Boiler replacement at SDCC.....	05-M31	\$427,421
29	Central chiller plant renovation at		
30	LCC.....	05-M36	\$1,212,864
31	Replacement of high mast cable		
32	systems and operators at ESP	05-M37	\$504,465
33	Boiler replacement at WSCC	05-M38	\$213,034
34	Repair perimeter fence at LCC	05-M40	\$60,056
35	Sewage treatment upgrades, phase		
36	II, at SNCC.....	05-M45	\$500,000
37	Arsenic reduction study of		
38	domestic water at SSCC and		
39	HCC	05-P01	\$65,599
40	Design replacement of water lines		
41	at SDCC	05-P02	\$488,297
42	Erosion control study at HDSP	05-P03	\$61,718
43	Design 400-bed addition for		
44	SNWCC	05-P05	\$2,662,734



1	Design Indian Springs Work		
2	Center.....	05-P28	\$1,970,385
3	(b) Capital Improvements for the		
4	Office of the Military:		
5	Acquire land for future Nevada		
6	National Guard facility and		
7	training sites.....	05-C25	\$546,000
8	(c) Capital Improvements for the		
9	Nevada System of Higher		
10	Education:		
11	Furnishings and equipment for		
12	health sciences building on		
13	West Charleston Campus of		
14	CCSN.....	05-C04	\$5,200,000
15	Greenspun College of Urban		
16	Affairs building at UNLV.....	05-C16	\$600,000
17	Design and construction of		
18	electrical and industrial		
19	technology building at Great		
20	Basin College.....	05-C18	\$350,000
21	New classroom building on West		
22	Charleston Campus of CCSN.....	05-C20c	\$100,000
23	Construction of student services		
24	building addition and		
25	renovation of Frazier Hall at		
26	UNLV.....	05-C67L	\$600,000
27	Science and math education		
28	center at UNR.....	05-C68L	\$600,000
29	Fire code renovations of Red		
30	Mountain Building at TMCC.....	05-M03	\$1,000,000
31	Life safety improvements of		
32	Bristlecone Building at		
33	WNCC.....	05-M09	\$89,398
34	Fire sprinkler system for Pinion		
35	Hall Building at WNCC.....	05-M10	\$86,044
36	4. The amount appropriated pursuant to subsection 2 is		
37	allocated to projects numbered and described in the executive		
38	budget for the 2005-2007 Biennium or otherwise described as		
39	follows:		
40	(a) Capital Improvements for the		
41	Nevada System of Higher		
42	Education:		
43	Fire sprinkler system for Pinion		
44	Hills Building at WNCC.....	05-M10	\$113,906



1	Design ADA improvements at		
2	WNCC in Carson City	05-P04	\$275,775
3	Advance planning of academic		
4	medical center for School of		
5	Medicine in Las Vegas.....	05-P29L	\$1,500,000
6	Campus Improvements-UCCSN		
7	System.....	05-U1L	\$400,000
8	Campus Improvements-UNLV	05-U2L	\$3,192,491
9	Campus Improvements-UNR.....	05-U3L	\$3,546,906
10	Campus Improvements-CCSN.....	05-U4L	\$1,170,432
11	Campus Improvements-DRI	05-U5L	\$274,065
12	Campus Improvements-GBC	05-U6L	\$269,955
13	Campus Improvements-TMCC	05-U7L	\$676,945
14	Campus Improvements-WNCC	05-U8L	\$365,206
15	Campus Improvements-NSC	05-U9L	\$104,000
16	(b) Capital Improvements for the		
17	Department of Conservation		
18	and Natural Resources:		
19	Indian Springs Camp upgrade,		
20	Division of Forestry	05-M05	\$107,166
21	Renovate Las Vegas Native Plant		
22	Nursery.....	05-M27	\$524,995
23	Kyle Canyon fire station upgrade	05-M28	\$116,930
24	Kyle Canyon fire station		
25	feasibility study	05-P18	\$44,100
26	(c) Capital Improvements for the		
27	Department of Human		
28	Resources:		
29	Furnishings and equipment for		
30	Southern Nevada Psychiatric		
31	Hospital.....	05-C03	\$4,593,047
32	Deferred construction and		
33	furnishings and equipment for		
34	central kitchen, NNAMHS.....	05-C07	\$1,047,022
35	Rehabilitation of food service		
36	facilities – buildings 4 and 5,		
37	Desert Regional Center.....	05-C15	\$130,000
38	Remodel of gymnasium and		
39	multi-purpose building at		
40	Nevada Youth Training Center.....	05-C35	\$627,829
41	Platform guardrail for rooftop		
42	HVAC unit at Lakes Crossing	05-M02	\$22,196
43	Replace emergency generators at		
44	Desert Regional Center.....	05-M07	\$281,486



1	Secure egress area for building		
2	3A at SNAMHS	05-M08	\$130,703
3	Generator for HVAC systems at		
4	SNCAS.....	05-M21	\$446,626
5	HVAC system renovation at		
6	Lakes Crossing.....	05-M26	\$177,193
7	HVAC system renovation for		
8	building 5 at NNAHMS	05-M32	\$265,179
9	HVAC system renovation for		
10	building 8 at NNAHMS	05-M33	\$371,997
11	Replacement of doors and door		
12	hardware at Lakes Crossing	05-M34	\$122,999
13	Domestic hot water system		
14	upgrades at Lakes Crossing	05-M35	\$60,720
15	Remodel bathrooms in buildings		
16	1, 2, 3 and 3A at SNAMHS	05-M41	\$1,306,722
17	Demolition of buildings 6, 7, 9,		
18	10, 11 and 24 at NNAHMS.....	05-M42	\$1,600,000
19	Consolidated facilities building		
20	study at NNAHMS.....	05-P19	\$277,411
21	(d) Capital Improvements for the		
22	Department of Administration:		
23	Repair exterior of the Grant		
24	Sawyer state office building	05-C01	\$2,309,671
25	Purchasing warehouse structural		
26	evaluation and repairs	05-M11	\$188,910
27	Building exterior masonry repairs		
28	at the Stewart Complex.....	05-M46	\$1,637,670
29	Statewide Roofing Program	05-S01	\$5,122,932
30	Statewide ADA Program.....	05-S02	\$3,227,032
31	Statewide Fire and Life Safety		
32	Program.....	05-S03	\$5,143,513
33	Statewide Advance Planning		
34	Program.....	05-S04	\$591,299
35	Statewide Paving Program	05-S05	\$3,763,264
36	Statewide Asbestos, Lead, Mold,		
37	IAQ Program.....	05-S06	\$200,000
38	Statewide Underground Storage		
39	Tank Program.....	05-S07	\$232,531
40	(e) Capital Improvements for the		
41	Department of Cultural		
42	Affairs:		
43	Design and construction of ADA		
44	entrance and connecting		



1	structure at Nevada State		
2	Museum in Carson City	05-C27	\$600,000
3	Electrical and lighting upgrade at		
4	Lost City Museum.....	05-M04	\$465,306
5	Light control switching at Nevada		
6	State Museum in Carson City	05-M12	\$100,721
7	Drainage and walkway		
8	improvements at Ely Railroad		
9	Museum.....	05-M23	\$180,076
10	Security upgrades at Nevada State		
11	Library and Archives	05-M43	\$1,183,593
12	Replace failing doors at Nevada		
13	State Railroad Museum.....	05-M44	\$120,139
14	Design State Records Center in		
15	Las Vegas.....	05-P06	\$180,464
16	(f) Capital Improvements for the		
17	Department of Public Safety:		
18	Telephone data switches for State		
19	Emergency Operations Center		
20	in Carson City	05-C08	\$577,490
21	Replacement of uninterruptible		
22	power supply for State		
23	Criminal Justice Computer		
24	System.....	05-M39	\$104,847
25	Design new Campos office		
26	building in Las Vegas	05-P08	\$1,257,768
27	(g) Capital Improvements for the		
28	Office of Veterans' Services:		
29	Central dining room for Veterans'		
30	Nursing Home in Boulder City	05-C17	\$70,000
31	(h) Capital Improvements for the		
32	Department of Agriculture:		
33	Purchase and remodel building		
34	for Elko branch office	05-C19	\$745,000
35	Design new headquarters and lab		
36	building in Sparks	05-P09	\$1,309,763
37	(i) Capital Improvements for the		
38	Department of Education:		
39	Programming of space needs in		
40	Carson City	05-P10	\$167,981

41 **Sec. 2.** Any remaining balance of the appropriations made by
42 section 1 of this act must not be committed for expenditure after
43 June 30, 2009, and must be reverted to the State General Fund on or
44 before September 18, 2009.



Sec. 3. Commencing on July 1, 2007, the Forestry Division of the Department of Conservation and Natural Resources shall repay in annual installments to the State Treasurer for deposit to the State General Fund the cost of the project numbered and described in the executive budget for Fiscal Years 2005-2006 and 2006-2007 or otherwise described as project 05-M27, renovate Las Vegas native plant nursery. Each installment must be equal to 5 percent of the total cost of the completed project.

Sec. 4. The State Board of Finance shall issue general obligation bonds of the State of Nevada in the face amount of not more than \$211,841,019 for the capital improvements summarized in this section. This amount is allocated to projects numbered and described in the executive budget for the 2005-2007 biennium or otherwise described as follows:

Description	Project No.	Amount
1. Capital Improvements for the Department of Corrections: Phase IV housing units at HDSP.....	05-C20b	\$39,639,099
2. Capital Improvements for the Office of the Military: Las Vegas readiness center for Nevada National Guard.....	05-C13	\$11,365,932
3. Capital Improvements for the Nevada System of Higher Education: Deferred construction of new campus library at UNR	05-C05	\$15,800,000
Construction of science, engineering and technology complex at UNLV.....	05-C06	\$15,822,050
Furnishings and equipment for academic and student services building and completion of master plan at Nevada State College	05-C10	\$1,079,820
Greenspun College of Urban Affairs building at UNLV	05-C16	\$33,366,389
Design and construction of electrical and industrial technology building at Great Basin College.....	05-C18	\$14,281,069
New classroom building on West Charleston Campus of CCSN	05-C20c	\$14,900,000



1	Automotive technology building,		
2	phase 1, on Cheyenne Campus		
3	of CCSN.....	05-C66L	\$9,400,000
4	Construction of student services		
5	building addition and		
6	renovation of Frazier Hall at		
7	UNLV	05-C67L	\$8,400,000
8	Science and math education		
9	center at UNR	05-C68L	\$31,400,000
10	4. Capital Improvements for the		
11	Department of Human		
12	Resources:		
13	Rehabilitation of food service		
14	facilities – buildings 4 and 5,		
15	Desert Regional Center.....	05-C15	\$1,768,598
16	Remodel of gymnasium and multi-		
17	purpose building at Nevada		
18	Youth Training Center	05-C35	\$3,199,570
19	5. Capital Improvements for the		
20	Department of Administration:		
21	Repair exterior of the Grant		
22	Sawyer state office building.....	05-C01	\$6,302,308
23	6. Capital Improvements for the		
24	Department of Cultural		
25	Affairs:		
26	Design and construction of ADA		
27	entrance and connecting		
28	structure at Nevada State		
29	Museum in Carson City	05-C27	\$2,859,894
30	7. Capital Improvements for the		
31	Office of Veterans' Services:		
32	Central dining room for Veterans'		
33	Nursing Home in Boulder City	05-C17	\$494,944
34	8. Capital Improvements for the		
35	State Department of		
36	Agriculture:		
37	Purchase and remodel building for		
38	Elko branch office.....	05-C19	\$1,761,346

39 **Sec. 5.** Any remaining balance of the allocated amounts
40 authorized in section 4 of this act must not be committed for
41 expenditure after June 30, 2009, and must be reverted to the Bond
42 Interest and Redemption Account in the Consolidated Bond Interest
43 and Redemption Fund on or before September 18, 2009.

44 **Sec. 6.** 1. The State Board of Finance may issue the bonds
45 authorized pursuant to section 4 of this act at the time deemed



appropriate by the Board based on the schedule established for the completion of the projects described in that section.

2. The State Controller may advance temporarily from the State General Fund, upon the approval of the Chief of the Budget Division of the Department of Administration, to the State Public Works Board, until the date on which bonds authorized by section 4 of this act are sold, amounts necessary to facilitate the start of the projects enumerated in section 4 of this act. The State Controller shall not advance more than the face amount of the bonds authorized to be issued. The advanced amounts must be repaid immediately to the State General Fund upon the sale of the bonds.

3. The Chief of the Budget Division of the Department of Administration shall notify the State Controller and the Fiscal Analysis Division of the Legislative Counsel Bureau of the approval of an advance from the State General Fund to the State Public Works Board pursuant to subsection 2.

Sec. 7. The State Public Works Board shall obtain approval of the type of new building exterior of the Grant Sawyer office building before expending any funding for the installation of the new building exterior for project 05-C01, repair the exterior at the Grant Sawyer state office building, from the Interim Finance Committee or the Legislature if in session, upon completion of the removal of the existing tile exterior.

Sec. 8. There is hereby appropriated from the State Highway Fund to the State Public Works Board the sum of \$1,474,499 to support the Board in carrying out the program of capital improvements summarized in this section. This amount is allocated to projects numbered and described in the executive budget for the 2005-2007 biennium or otherwise described as follows:

Description	Project No.	Amount
1. Furnishings, equipment and street improvements at new DMV field services office in North Las Vegas	05-C02	\$974,403
2. Statewide ADA Program	05-S02	\$71,952
3. Statewide Fire and Life Safety Program	05-S03	\$52,500
4. Statewide Paving Program	05-S05	\$375,644

Sec. 9. Any remaining balance of the appropriations made by section 8 of this act must not be committed for expenditure after June 30, 2009, and must be reverted to the State Highway Fund on or before September 18, 2009.



Sec. 10. The amounts appropriated pursuant to section 8 of this act from the State Highway Fund must be allocated by the State Controller as the money is required for the projects and must not be transferred to the projects from the State Highway Fund until required to make contract payments.

Sec. 11. Expenditure of the following sums received by the Board of Regents of the University of Nevada pursuant to paragraph (b) of subsection 1 of NRS 375A.700 is hereby authorized for the following projects numbered and described in the executive budget for the 2005-2007 biennium or otherwise described as follows:

Description	Project No.	Amount
1. New classroom building on West Charleston Campus of CCSN	05-C20c	\$5,000,000
2. Academic and student services building at NSC.....	05-C64L	\$9,000,000
3. Cave Automated Virtual Environment facility at DRI.....	05-C65L	\$14,400,000
4. Automotive technology building, phase 1, on Cheyenne Campus of CCSN.....	05-C66L	\$600,000

Sec. 12. Expenditure of the following sums not appropriated from the State General Fund or the State Highway Fund is hereby authorized for the following projects numbered and described in the executive budget for the 2005-2007 biennium or otherwise described as follows:

Description	Project No.	Amount
1. Demolition of Nevada Highway Patrol office building in Las Vegas.....	05-C11	\$334,264
2. Las Vegas readiness center for Nevada National Guard.....	05-C13	\$14,853,000
3. Greenspun College of Urban Affairs building at UNLV.....	05-C16	\$23,255,551
4. Central dining room for Veterans' Nursing Home in Boulder City.....	05-C17	\$631,971



1	5.	Design and construction of		
2		electrical and industrial		
3		technology building at Great		
4		Basin College.....	05-C18	\$500,000
5	6.	New classroom building on West		
6		Charleston Campus of CCSN	05-C20c	\$5,000,000
7	7.	Cave Automated Virtual		
8		Environment facility at DRI.....	05-C65L	\$3,470,000
9	8.	Automotive technology building,		
10		phase 1, on Cheyenne Campus		
11		of CCSN.....	05-C66L	\$1,000,000
12	9.	Construction of student services		
13		building addition and		
14		renovation of Frazier Hall at		
15		UNLV	05-C67L	\$1,000,000
16	10.	Science and math education		
17		center at UNR	05-C68L	\$18,000,000
18	11.	Design new biotechnology and		
19		genomics research facility at		
20		UNR	05-P20	\$5,446,333
21	12.	Statewide Asbestos, Lead,		
22		Mold, IAQ Program	05-S06	\$200,000

23 **Sec. 13.** The State Public Works Board shall not execute a
24 contract for the construction of the following projects until the
25 Board has determined that the money authorized for those projects
26 pursuant to section 12 of this act is available for expenditure for
27 those projects and cannot be expended for other purposes:

29	Description	Project No.
30		
31	1. Greenspun College of Urban Affairs building	
32	at UNLV.....	05-C16
33	2. Design and construction of electrical and	
34	industrial technology building at Great Basin	
35	College	05-C18
36	3. New classroom building on West Charleston	
37	Campus of CCSN.....	05-C20c
38	4. Cave Automated Virtual Environment facility	
39	at DRI.....	05-C65L
40	5. Automotive technology building, phase 1, on	
41	Cheyenne Campus of CCSN.....	05-C66L
42	6. Construction of student services building	
43	addition and renovation of Frazier Hall at	
44	UNLV	05-C67L
45	7. Science and math education center at UNR	05-C68L



8. Design new biotechnology and genomics
research facility at UNR.....05-P20

Sec. 14. 1. The State Controller may advance temporarily from the State General Fund, upon the approval of the Chief of the Budget Division of the Department of Administration, to the State Public Works Board, until the date on which the sums not appropriated from the State General Fund or the State Highway Fund for project 05-C13, Las Vegas readiness center for Nevada National Guard, are received, amounts necessary to facilitate the start of the project. The advanced amounts must be repaid immediately to the State General Fund upon the receipt of the sums not appropriated from the State General Fund or the State Highway Fund.

2. The Chief of the Budget Division of the Department of Administration shall notify the State Controller and the Fiscal Analysis Division of the Legislative Counsel Bureau of the approval of an advance from the State General Fund to the State Public Works Board pursuant to subsection 1.

Sec. 15. The State Public Works Board shall not execute a contract for the design or construction of project 05-C17, central dining room for Veterans' Nursing Home in Boulder City, until the Board has determined that the money authorized for this project pursuant to section 12 of this act is available for expenditure for this project and cannot be expended for other purposes.

Sec. 16. The State Public Works Board shall carry out the provisions of this act as provided in chapter 341 of NRS. The Board shall ensure that qualified persons are employed to accomplish the authorized work. Every contract pertaining to the work must be approved by the Attorney General.

Sec. 17. All state and local governmental agencies involved in the design and construction of the projects enumerated in this act shall cooperate with the State Public Works Board to expedite the completion of the project.

Sec. 18. 1. An ad valorem tax of 15.85 cents on each \$100 of assessed valuation of taxable property is hereby levied for the fiscal year commencing on July 1, 2005, and ending on June 30, 2006, and an ad valorem tax of 15.85 cents on each \$100 of assessed valuation of taxable property is hereby levied for the fiscal year commencing on July 1, 2006, and ending on June 30, 2007. The taxes levied must be collected in the manner provided in chapter 361 of NRS on all taxable property in this State including the net proceeds of minerals and excluding such property as is by law exempt from taxation. Notwithstanding the provisions of NRS 361.453 to the contrary, 0.85 cents of the levies imposed pursuant to this subsection must not be included in calculating the limitation set forth in subsection 1 of



1 NRS 361.453 on the total ad valorem tax levied for all public
2 purposes.

3 2. An ad valorem tax of 1.15 cents on each \$100 of assessed
4 valuation of taxable property is hereby levied for the fiscal year
5 commencing on July 1, 2005, and ending on June 30, 2006, and an
6 ad valorem tax of 1.15 cents on each \$100 of assessed valuation of
7 taxable property is hereby levied for the fiscal year commencing on
8 July 1, 2006, and ending on June 30, 2007. The taxes levied must be
9 collected in the manner provided in chapter 361 of NRS on all
10 taxable property in this State including the net proceeds of minerals
11 and excluding such property as is by law exempt from taxation. The
12 proceeds of the taxes levied pursuant to this subsection must be used
13 exclusively for the repayment of bonded indebtedness issued
14 pursuant to the provisions of Chapter 6, Statutes of Nevada 2001,
15 Special Session. Notwithstanding the provisions of NRS 361.453 to
16 the contrary, the levies imposed pursuant to this subsection must not
17 be included in calculating the limitation set forth in subsection 1 of
18 NRS 361.453 on the total ad valorem tax levied for all public
19 purposes.

20 3. The proceeds of the taxes levied by this section are hereby
21 appropriated for each fiscal year to the Consolidated Bond Interest
22 and Redemption Fund to discharge the obligations of the State of
23 Nevada as they are respectively due in that fiscal year. Any balance
24 of the money appropriated by this section remaining at the end of
25 the respective fiscal years does not revert to the State General Fund.

26 **Sec. 19.** 1. On or before July 1, 2005, and July 1, 2006, the
27 State Controller shall estimate the amount of proceeds of the taxes
28 levied by section 18 of this act. If the amount is less than the total
29 obligation of the State of Nevada for payment of the interest on and
30 principal of bonds which will become due in the fiscal year, he shall
31 reserve in the State General Fund an amount which is sufficient to
32 pay the remainder of the total obligation. The State Controller may
33 revise the estimate and amount reserved.

34 2. If the money in the Consolidated Bond Interest and
35 Redemption Fund is insufficient to pay those obligations as they
36 become due, the State Controller shall cause the money in reserve to
37 be transferred from the State General Fund to the Consolidated
38 Bond Interest and Redemption Fund. The amount reserved is hereby
39 contingently appropriated for that purpose. Any balance of the sums
40 appropriated by this subsection remaining at the end of the
41 respective fiscal years must not be committed for expenditure after
42 June 30 of the respective fiscal years and must be reverted to the
43 State General Fund on or before September 15, 2006, and
44 September 21, 2007, respectively.



3. The State Controller shall report to the Legislature or, if the Legislature is not in session, to the Interim Finance Committee:

(a) The amount of any estimate made pursuant to subsection 1 and the amount of money reserved in the State General Fund based upon the estimate;

(b) The amount of money transferred from the State General Fund pursuant to subsection 2; and

(c) The amount of money which reverts to the State General Fund pursuant to subsection 2.

Sec. 20. The State Board of Finance, in its capacity as the State General Obligation Bond Commission and to the extent that money is available, shall pay the expenses related to the issuance of general obligation bonds approved by the 73rd Session of the Nevada Legislature from the proceeds of those bonds.

Sec. 21. Expenditure of the following sums not appropriated from the State General Fund or the State Highway Fund is hereby authorized from the Consolidated Bond Interest and Redemption Fund in the amount of \$114,577,299 for the fiscal year beginning on July 1, 2005, and ending on June 30, 2006, and in the amount of \$120,840,241 for the fiscal year beginning on July 1, 2006, and ending on June 30, 2007.

Sec. 22. With the approval of the Interim Finance Committee, the State Public Works Board and the Nevada System of Higher Education may transfer appropriated and authorized money from one project to another within the same agency or within the University and Community College System of Nevada for those projects listed in sections 1, 4, 11, 12 and 23 of this act.

Sec. 23. The money collected pursuant to the annual tax on slot machines imposed pursuant to NRS 463.385 that is distributed to the Special Capital Construction Fund for Higher Education, except any amount of that money which is needed to pay the principal and interest on bonds, is appropriated to the State Public Works Board for the following capital improvement projects for the Nevada System of Higher Education:

Description	Project No.	Amount
Campus Improvements-UNLV	05-U2L	\$1,862,699
Campus Improvements-UNR	05-U3L	\$2,284,636
Campus Improvements-CCSN	05-U4L	\$493,189
Campus Improvements-DRI	05-U5L	\$48,193
Campus Improvements-GBC	05-U6L	\$3,241
Campus Improvements-TMCC	05-U7L	\$232,617
Campus Improvements-WNCC	05-U8L	\$75,425



1 **Sec. 24.** Any remaining balance of the appropriation made by
2 section 23 of this act must not be committed for expenditure after
3 June 30, 2009, and must be reverted to the fund of origin on or
4 before September 18, 2009.

5 **Sec. 25.** Section 11 of Chapter 478, Statutes of Nevada 1997,
6 as last amended by Section 28 of Chapter 512, Statutes of Nevada
7 2003, at page 3507, is hereby amended to read as follows:

8 Sec. 11. 1. Except as otherwise provided in this
9 section, any remaining balance of the allocated amounts
10 authorized in Section 10 of Chapter 478, Statutes of Nevada
11 1997, at page 1832, must not be committed for expenditure
12 after June 30, 2001, and ~~reverts~~ *must be reverted* to the
13 bond interest and redemption account in the Consolidated
14 Bond Interest and Redemption Fund ~~{as soon as all payments~~
15 ~~of money committed have been made.}~~ *on or before*
16 *September 21, 2001.*

17 2. Except as otherwise provided in subsection 4, any
18 remaining balance of the allocated amounts authorized in
19 Section 10 of Chapter 478, Statutes of Nevada 1997, at page
20 1832, for projects enumerated in Section 17 of Chapter 542,
21 Statutes of Nevada 1999, at page 2830, must not be
22 committed for expenditure after June 30, 2003, and ~~reverts~~
23 *must be reverted* to the Bond Interest and Redemption
24 Account in the Consolidated Bond Interest and Redemption
25 Fund ~~{as soon as all payments of money committed have been~~
26 ~~made.}~~ *on or before September 19, 2003.*

27 3. Any remaining balance of the allocated amounts
28 authorized in Section 10 of Chapter 478, Statutes of Nevada
29 1997, at page 1832, for projects enumerated in Section 19 of
30 Chapter 585, Statutes of Nevada 2001, at page 3000, must not
31 be committed for expenditure after June 30, 2005,
32 and ~~reverts~~ *must be reverted* to the Bond Interest and
33 Redemption Account in the Consolidated Bond Interest and
34 Redemption Fund ~~{as soon as all payments of money~~
35 ~~committed have been made.}~~ *on or before September 16,*
36 *2005.*

37 4. Any remaining balance of the allocated amounts
38 authorized in Section 10 of Chapter 478, Statutes of Nevada
39 1997, at page 1832, for project 97-C15, Lied Library, UNLV,
40 must not be committed for expenditure after June 30, ~~2005,~~
41 ~~and reverts~~ *2007, and must be reverted* to the Bond Interest
42 and Redemption Account in the Consolidated Bond Interest
43 and Redemption Fund ~~{as soon as all payments of money~~
44 ~~committed have been made.}~~ *on or before September 21,*
45 *2007.*



Sec. 26. Section 3 of Chapter 542, Statutes of Nevada 1999, as last amended by Section 29 of Chapter 512, Statutes of Nevada 2003, at page 3508, is hereby amended as follows:

Sec. 3. 1. Except as otherwise provided in this section, any remaining balance of the allocated amounts authorized in Sections 1 and 2 of Chapter 542, Statutes of Nevada 1999, at pages 2822 to 2826, inclusive, must not be committed for expenditure after June 30, 2003, and ~~[reverts]~~ *must be reverted* to the Bond Interest and Redemption Account in the Consolidated Bond Interest and Redemption Fund ~~[as soon as all payments of money committed have been made:~~

~~—2. Any]~~ *on or before September 19, 2003.*

2. *Except as otherwise provided in subsection 7, any* remaining balance of the allocated amounts authorized in Section 1 of Chapter 542, Statutes of Nevada 1999, at page 2822, for projects enumerated in Section 20 of Chapter 585, Statutes of Nevada 2001, at page 3002, must not be committed for expenditure after June 30, 2005, and ~~[reverts]~~ *must be reverted* to the Bond Interest and Redemption Account in the Consolidated Bond Interest and Redemption Fund ~~[as soon as all payments of money committed have been made:]~~ *on or before September 16, 2005.*

3. Any remaining balance of the allocated amounts authorized in Section 1 of Chapter 542, Statutes of Nevada 1999, at page 2822, for the following projects, must not be committed for expenditure after June 30, 2004, and ~~[reverts]~~ *must be reverted* to the Bond Interest and Redemption Account in the Consolidated Bond Interest and Redemption Fund ~~[as soon as all payments of money committed have been made:]~~ *on or before September 17, 2004:*

Description

Project No.

- | | |
|--|--------|
| (a) New supply administration facility,
Carson City | 99-C3 |
| (b) SNAMHS, advance planning for
psychiatric emergency crisis center..... | 99-C7 |
| (c) Capitol complex conduit system, phase
II, Carson City | 99-C8 |
| (d) Enclose pavilion at Veteran's
Cemetery, Fernley..... | 99-C9 |
| (e) Law School Renovation, UNLV | 99-C12 |
| (f) Science building on West Charleston
campus, CCSN..... | 99-C14 |
| (g) Library and student center, WNCC..... | 99-C17 |



- (h) High-Tech learning center, Green Valley, CCSN 99-C28L
(i) Statewide ADA program..... 99-S2

4. Any remaining balance of the allocated amounts authorized in Section 1 of Chapter 542, Statutes of Nevada 1999, at page 2822, for the following projects, must not be committed for expenditure after June 30, 2005 , and ~~[reverts]~~ *must be reverted* to the Bond Interest and Redemption Account in the Consolidated Bond Interest and Redemption Fund ~~[as soon as all payments of money committed have been made:]~~ *on or before September 16, 2005:*

Description	Project No.
(a) Lied Library Furnishings, UNLV	99-C11
(b) [Redfield campus, phase I, UNR.....	99 C13
—(c) Student development center, TMCC	99 C16
—(d) High Tech learning center, TMCC	99 C37L
—(e)] Provide second exit from dormitories and install fire sprinklers at Caliente Youth Center.....	99-M1
[(f)] (c) Repair/remodel multipurpose building and replace ceiling and wall covers in the gymnasium, NYTC, Elko.....	99-M22
[(g)] (d) Library Upgrade building data systems/wiring for Capitol Complex and Sawyer Building, Carson City and Las Vegas.....	99-M26
[(h)] (e) Statewide asbestos, lead and indoor air quality program	99-S6

5. Any remaining balance of the allocated amounts authorized in Section 1 of Chapter 542, Statutes of Nevada 1999, at page 2822, for projects enumerated in Section 9 of ~~[this act.]~~ *Chapter 512, Statutes of Nevada 2003, at page 3502,* must not be committed for expenditure after June 30, 2007 , and ~~[reverts]~~ *must be reverted* to the Bond Interest and Redemption Account in the Consolidated Bond Interest and Redemption Fund ~~[as soon as all payments of money committed have been made:]~~ *on or before September 21, 2007.*

6. *Any remaining balance of the allocated amounts authorized in Section 1 of Chapter 542, Statutes of Nevada 1999, at page 2822, for the following projects, must not be*



1 committed for expenditure after June 30, 2006, and must be
2 reverted to the Bond Interest and Redemption Account in
3 the Consolidated Bond Interest and Redemption Fund on or
4 before September 15, 2006:

Description	Project No.
(a) Redfield campus, phase 1, UNR	99-C13
(b) High-Tech learning center, TMCC	99-C37L

10
11 7. Any remaining balance of the allocated amounts
12 authorized in Section 1 of Chapter 542, Statutes of Nevada
13 1999, at page 2822, for the following projects, must not be
14 committed for expenditure after June 30, 2007, and must be
15 reverted to the Bond Interest and Redemption Account in
16 the Consolidated Bond Interest and Redemption Fund on or
17 before September 21, 2007:

Description	Project No.
(a) Men's Prison No. 7, Phase II.....	99-C1
(b) Student development center, TMCC.....	99-C16

21
22
23 **Sec. 27.** Section 3 of Chapter 585, Statutes of Nevada 2001, as
24 amended by Section 32 of Chapter 512, Statutes of Nevada 2003, at
25 page 3510, is hereby amended to read as follows:

26 Sec. 3. 1. Except as otherwise provided in subsection
27 2, any remaining balance of the appropriations made by
28 Section 2 of Chapter 585, Statutes of Nevada 2001, at page
29 2993, must not be committed for expenditure after June 30,
30 2005 , and ~~{reverts}~~ must be reverted to the State General
31 Fund ~~{as soon as all payments of money committed have been~~
32 ~~made.}~~ on or before September 16, 2005.

33 2. Any remaining balance of the appropriations made by
34 Section 2 of Chapter 585, Statutes of Nevada 2001, at page
35 2993, for the following projects, must not be committed for
36 expenditure after June 30, 2007 , and ~~{reverts}~~ must be
37 reverted to the State General Fund ~~{as soon as all payments of~~
38 ~~money committed have been made.}~~ on or before
39 September 21, 2007:

Description	Project No.
(a) Upgrade exercise areas of units 1-8 at ESP	01-M30



- (b) Replace windows in housing units
1-4 at NNCC.....01-M33
- (c) Upgrade pedestrian entrance area at
SDCC.....01-M38
- (d) *Advance planning for 2003 and future
CIP Programs 01-C5*
- (e) *Capitol, capitol annex and Blasdel
building renovations..... 01-C10*
- (f) *Repairs and improvements to Grant
Sawyer state office building01-M4*
- (g) *Improvements to the Clear Creek Youth
Center.....01-M5*
- (h) *Replace door locks on housing units at
Caliente Youth Center01-M13*
- (i) *Sewage treatment plant improvements
at SNCC, LCC, PCC and ECC.....01-M40*

Sec. 28. Section 5 of Chapter 585, Statutes of Nevada 2001, as amended by Section 33 of Chapter 512, Statutes of Nevada 2003, at page 3511, is hereby amended to read as follows:

Sec. 5. 1. Except as otherwise provided in ~~subsection 2,~~ *this section*, any remaining balance of the allocated amounts authorized in Section 4 of Chapter 585, Statutes of Nevada 2001, at page 2995, must not be committed for expenditure after June 30, 2005 , and ~~reverts~~ *must be reverted* to the Bond Interest and Redemption Account in the Consolidated Bond Interest and Redemption Fund ~~as soon as all payments of money committed have been made.~~ *on or before September 16, 2005.*

2. Any remaining balance of the allocated amounts authorized in Section 4 of Chapter 585, Statutes of Nevada 2001, at page 2995, for project 01-C4, New State Motor Pool building, must not be committed for expenditure after June 30, 2007, and ~~reverts~~ *must be reverted* to the Bond Interest and Redemption Account in the Consolidated Bond Interest and Redemption Fund ~~as soon as all payments of money committed have been made.~~ *on or before September 21, 2007.*

3. *Any remaining balance of the allocated amounts authorized in Section 4 of Chapter 585, Statutes of Nevada 2001, at page 2995, for project 01-C16, furnishings and build-out, Redfield campus, phase I, UNR, must not be committed for expenditure after June 30, 2006, and must be reverted to the Bond Interest and Redemption Account in the Consolidated Bond Interest and Redemption Fund on or before September 15, 2006.*



4. Any remaining balance of the allocated amounts authorized in Section 4 of Chapter 585, Statutes of Nevada 2001, at page 2995, for the following projects, must not be committed for expenditure after June 30, 2007, and must be reverted to the Bond Interest and Redemption Account in the Consolidated Bond Interest and Redemption Fund on or before September 21, 2007:

Description	Project No.
(a) Finalize southern Nevada veterans' home.....	01-C8
(b) Special children's clinic addition and remodel.....	01-C9
(c) Capitol, capitol annex and Blasdel building renovations.....	01-C10
(d) National Guard Rural Armory renovations.....	01-C12
(e) Planning, design and utility infrastructure for science and engineering complex, UNLV.....	01-C15
(f) Furnishings and build-out of library and student center, WNCC.....	01-C18
(g) Wright Hall addition and renovation, UNLV.....	01-C23
(h) New campus library, UNR.....	01-C24
(i) Academic and student services building, NSC.....	01-C25
(j) Telecommunications building on Cheyenne campus, CCSN.....	01-C29L
(k) HVAC upgrades at computer facility, Carson City.....	01-M26
(l) Replace boiler, pumps and piping at computer facility, Carson City.....	01-M27
(m) Statewide roofing program.....	01-S1
(n) Statewide ADA program.....	01-S2
(o) Statewide fire sprinkler program.....	01-S3

Sec. 29. Section 22 of Chapter 585, Statutes of Nevada 2001, at page 3003, is hereby amended to read as follows:

Sec. 22. ~~[Any]~~

1. Except as otherwise provided in subsection 2, any remaining balance of the allocated amounts in Section 21 of ~~[this act]~~ Chapter 585, Statutes of Nevada 2001, at page 3002, must not be committed for expenditure after June 30, 2005, and ~~[reverts]~~ must be reverted to the fund of origin ~~[as~~



~~soon as all payments of money committed have been made.]~~
on or before September 16, 2005.

2. Any remaining balance of the allocated amounts authorized in Section 21 of Chapter 585, Statutes of Nevada 2001, at page 3002, for project 01-C16, furnishings and build-out, Redfield campus, phase I, UNR, must not be committed for expenditure after June 30, 2006, and must be reverted to the fund of origin on or before September 15, 2006.

3. Any remaining balance of the allocated amounts authorized in Section 21 of Chapter 585, Statutes of Nevada 2001, at page 3002, for the following projects, must not be committed for expenditure after June 30, 2007, and must be reverted to the fund of origin on or before September 21, 2007:

Description	Project No.
(a) Advanced planning for 2003 and future CIP Programs	01-C5
(b) Special children's clinic addition and remodel.....	01-C9
(c) Furnishings and build-out of library and student center, WNCC.....	01-C18
(d) Improvements to the Clear Creek Youth Center.....	01-M5
(e) Statewide roofing program.....	01-S1
(f) Statewide ADA program	01-S2
(g) Statewide fire sprinkler program	01-S3

Sec. 30. Section 23 of Chapter 585, Statutes of Nevada 2001, at page 3003, is hereby amended to read as follows:

Sec. 23. Expenditure of the following sums not appropriated from the State General Fund or the State Highway Fund is hereby authorized for the following projects numbered and described in the executive budget for the Fiscal Years 2001-2002 and 2002-2003 or otherwise described as follows:

Description	Project No.	Amount
1. High Desert State Prison, phase III.....	01-C1	\$1,762,382
2. Advanced planning for Las Vegas readiness center	01-C6	\$225,000



1	3. Veterans' cemetery		
2	expansion, phase IV.....	01-C7	\$3,322,869
3	4. National Guard Rural		
4	Armory renovations.....	01-C12	\$1,800,059
5	5. Furnishings and build-		
6	out, Redfield campus,		
7	phase I, UNR.....	01-C16	\$2,500,000
8	—6.] New campus library,		
9	UNR.....	01-C24	\$20,449,306
10	[7.] 6. Academic and		
11	student services		
12	building, NSC.....	01-C25	[\$10,000,000]
13			\$1,000,000
14	[8.] 7. Telecommunications		
15	building on Cheyenne		
16	campus, CCSN	01-C29L	\$1,000,000

17 **Sec. 31.** Section 24 of Chapter 585, Statutes of Nevada 2001,
18 at page 3003, is hereby amended to read as follows:

19 Sec. 24. The State Public Works Board shall not
20 execute a contract for the construction of the following
21 projects until the Board receives the money authorized for
22 those projects pursuant to Section 23 of ~~[this act:]~~ *Chapter*
23 *585, Statutes of Nevada 2001, at page 3003:*
24

25 **Description**

Project No.

26		
27	1. Furnishings and build-out, Redfield	
28	campus, phase 1, UNR	01-C16
29	—2.] New campus library, UNR	01-C24
30	[3.] 2. Academic and student services	
31	building, NSC.....	01-C25
32	[4.] 3. Telecommunications building on	
33	Cheyenne campus, CCSN	01-C29L

34 **Sec. 32.** 1. This section, subsections 1 and 3 of section 1 of
35 this act, and sections 2 to 31, inclusive, of this act become effective
36 upon passage and approval.

37 2. Subsections 2 and 4 of section 1 of this act become effective
38 on July 1, 2005.



